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SPR Takahata Precision India Pvt. Ltd.
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SPR Takahata Precision India Pvt. Ltd. (SPR TPIPL), is the leading precision engineering company engaged in the
manufacturing of precision moulded/assembled parts and precision metal moulds located at Neemrana, Rajasthan.
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (SPRL) acquired (through its subsidiary, SPR Engenious Ltd.) a majority stake in SPR
Takahata Precision India Pvt. Ltd. With this strategic investment, SPRL aims to diversify its product portfolio beyond the
current Pistons, Rings, Engine Valves, and EV components to precision plastic injection moulded parts. With the
operations & technology support of Takahata Japan to SPR TPIPL, we will be able to service the Domestic and Global
customers requiring precision moulded parts both for Automotive & Industrial applications. The product range of SPR
TPIPL includes Power Window Parts, Wiper Motor Parts, Door Lock Parts, Seat Belt Parts, Junction & Relay Box, Fuel
Pump Module, Throttle Sensor, ECU, Steering Part, Headlamp Unit Assembly, Case Parts, Starter Motor Parts, Steering
Parts, Air/C Parts, Brake Unit Assembly and Accelerator Pedal Sensor. Major customers include: Hitachi Astemo, Denso,
Mitsubishi Electric, etc.
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited

(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) I._S PR__l
Regd. Office: SP2-41 RICO New Industrial Complex, T TAKAHATA
Phase-lll Neemrana, Alwar, Rajasthan 301705 India

CIN : U29220RJ2010FTC046888
E-mail : c.kumar@takahata.biz

NOTICE

The 15" (fiffeenth) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of SPR Takahata Precision India
Private Limited (‘Company’) will be held on Thursday, July, 31, 2025 at 11:30 A.M.
Indian Standard Time (IST) through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means
(‘'VC/ OAVM’) for which purpose the Registered Office of the Company situated at
SP2-41 RIICO New Industrial Complex, Phase-lll Neemrana, Alwar, Rajasthan, 301705,
India, shall be deemed as the venue for the Meeting and the proceedings of the
AGM shall be deemed to be made thereat, to transact the following business(es):-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Board’s Report and
Audifors’ Report thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla (DIN: 09854946) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prem Prakash Rathi (DIN: 09854954) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Sd/-

Nidhi Kandwal

Date: May 7, 2025 Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi M.No. A54066


mailto:c.kumar@takahata.biz

NOTES:

1.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No. 17/ 2020
dated Agpril 13, 2020, Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, General Circular
No. 10/ 2021 dated June 23, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated December
8, 2021 and General Circular No. 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022, General
Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and and General Circular No.
09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars”)
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has decided to hold its 15t
Annual General Meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio
visual means (OAVM), without physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. The deemed venue for the 15" AGM shall be the Registered Office of the
Company i.e. SP2-41 RIICO New Industrial Complex, Phase -ll, Alwar, Neemrana,
Rajasthan, 301705.

The relevant details of persons seeking re-appointment relating to Item Nos. 2 & 3
of this Notice as required under Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India are annexed hereto and form part of this Notice.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the requirement of physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms of the
MCA Circular(s), the facility for appointment of Proxies by the Members will not be
available for this AGM; and hence, the Proxy Form, Aftendance Slip and Route
Map to AGM venue are not annexed to this Nofice.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of
the Company. Since the AGM is being held in accordance with the above
circulars through VC/OAVM, the facility for the appointment of proxies by the
members will not be available.

Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting. The details of the
Zoom Meeting link to join the AGM will be provided to the registered email id of
the Members.

Corporate members infending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the meeting are advised to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.



8. As the AGM will be conducted through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM), Zoom Meeting invite will be sent to the registered e-mails of
the [Juthorized representatives of the Members, closer to the date of the AGM.

9. In case of any doubts or clarification, the members are requested to contact the
Company at email: c.kumar@takahata.biz.

10. Inspection of Documents: The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register
of Confracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the
members during the AGM.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Sd/-

Nidhi Kandwal

Date: May 7, 2025 Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi M.No. A54066


mailto:c.kumar@takahata.biz

DETAILS OF PERSONS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTORS AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name of the Director

Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla
(DIN: 09854946)

Mr. Prem Prakash Rathi
(DIN: 09854954)

Date of Birth/ Age

15.01.1965 (60 years)

24.03.1974 (51 years)

Nationality Indian Indian

Date of appointment in the 16/10/2023 16/10/2023

Board of the Company

Number of Board Meetings 5 5

attended during last year

Quualifications/ Experience | He graduated with a Bachelor's | He holds a Bachelor's degree in
degree in Mechanical Engineering | Commerce and is a  quadlified

from IIT- Kanpur. He has long and

Chartered Accountant. He also serves

extensive experience in | as the Chief Financial Officer of Shriram
diversification, expansion, and | Pistons & Rings Limited (Ultimate
technical leadership within  the | Holding Company) and SPR Engenious
automotive industry. Limited (Holding Company) and brings
with  him extensive and diverse
experience in the automotive industry.
Occupation/ Expertise in Knowledge of operations, | Knowledge of finance, ftaxation, law,
Functional Area technology, management, sales, | management, sales, marketing,

marketing, administration, research

and corporate governance.

administration, research and corporate
governance.

Details of remuneration NA NA
sought
Remuneration last drawn NA NA

Directorships held in other
companies

. SPR EMF Innovations Private

Limited -Director

1. SPR TGPEL Precision Engineering
Limited - Director

2. SPR TGPEL Precision Engineering 2. Karna Intertech Private Limited -
Limited - Director Director
3. Karna Intertech Private Limited -
Director
Chairman/ Member of the NIL NIL
Committee(s) of the Board
of Directors of the
Company
Chairman/ Member of the NIL NIL
Committee(s) of the Board
of Directors of other
Companies in which he/
she is a Director
No. of Shares held by the NIL NIL
Director of the Company
Relationship with other He is not related fo any | Heisnotfrelated to any Director/KMP of

Directors/ KMPs

Director/KMP of the Company.

the Company.




SPR TAKAHATA PRECISION INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

BOARD'’S REPORT

To the Members,

The Board of Directors (“Board”) are pleased to present the 15 Annual Report on the
business and operations of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata
Precision India Private Limited) (“the Company”) along with the Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial & Operational Performance

During the year, the financial performance of the Company is as under:
(Amount in Rs. Million)

Parficul Financial Year Ended
arficulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Revenue from Operations 2,951.58 2,675.08
Profit/(loss) before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (EBITDA) 521.78 406.29
Profit before Depreciation and Taxes (before OCI) 431.67 317.99
Depreciation 113.26 183.87
Profit Before Tax 318.42 134.13
Income Tax (including for earlier years) (41.11) 4,19
Net Profit After Tax (before OCI) 359.53 129.94
Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax ) )
(on declared basis)
Earnings Per Share in Rs. 1.96 0.78
Amount fransferred to General Reserves Nil Nil

The Company’s exports decreased from Rs. 0.92 Million to Rs. 0.54 Million.
Dividend
The Board of Directors of the Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

Change in the nature of business

During the financial year 2024-25, there was no change in the nature of the Company’s
business.

Holding/Subsidiary/Associate Company and its Annual Accounts

During the financial year 2023-24, SPR Engenious Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (a listed public company), acquired a 62% equity stake in
the Company.



Pursuant to this acquisition, the Company became a subsidiary of SPR Engenious Limited
and a step-down subsidiary of Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited.

As on March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint
venture.

Change in the name of the Company

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors and shareholders at their respective
meetings held on January 30, 2024, and February 14, 2024, the name of the Company was
changed from “Takahata Precision India Private Limited” to “SPR Takahata Precision India
Private Limited”, as approved by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), with effect from
May 2, 2024.

Acquisition of Additional Land

During the year under review, the Company acquired Plot No. SP2-42, admeasuring 20,831
square meters, located adjacent to its existing manufacturing facility at Plot No. SP2-41 in
the Japanese Investment Zone, Neemrana, Rajasthan. The acquisition was carried out at a
total cost of Rs. 94 Milion, plus applicable taxes, duties, registration fees, and other
charges. The existing facility is operating near its maximum capacity, and this acquisition
has been undertaken to support the Company’s long-term business expansion plans and
to ensure readiness for future infrastructure and operational requirements.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

No material changes and/or commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between April 1, 2025, and the date of signing of this Report.

Share Capital

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized, issued, subscribed
or paid up share capital of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not issued any equity shares with differential
rights/sweat equity shares under Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

Annual Return
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a), the Annual Return for FY 2024-25 is uploaded on the website

of the Company and the same is available on https.//spr-takahata.com/investor-guide/
under "Annual Return” tab.

Board Meetings

During the year under review, 5 (five) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on
various dates viz., May 13, 2024, July 23, 2024, October 28, 2024, February 3, 2025, and
March 25, 2025.

The names of members of the Board and their attendance at the Board Meetings are as
under:
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Name of the Directors No. of Board Meetings altended/Total Meetings held
during their tenure
Mr. Krishnakumar Srinivasan 5/5
Mr. Nobuyuki Ako 4/5
Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla 5/5
Mr. Prem Prakash Rathi 5/5
Mr. Pankaj Gupta 5/5
Mr. Deepak Dimri 5/5
Mr. Chandan Kumar 5/5
Ms. Ferida Chopra 5/5
Mr. Alok Ranjan 5/5
Mr. Tomohisa Saito* 5/5

Note: *Mr. Tomohisa Saito was appointed as NED w.e.f. 09.05.2024.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The list of Directors/KMPs at the end of the financial year is:

DIN/PAN Name of the Director Designation
06560117 Mr. Nobuyuki Ako Non-Executive Director
09596404 Mr. Chandan Kumar Whole-time Director
03344410 Mr. Deepak Dimri Managing Director
00692717 Mr. Krishnakumar Srinivasan Non-Executive Director
00973903 Mr. Pankaj Gupta Non-Executive Director
09854946 Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla Non-Executive Director
09854954 Mr. Prem Prakash Rathi Non-Executive Director
08415847 Ms. Ferida Avnish Chopra Non-Executive Independent Director
08254398 Mr. Alok Ranjan Non-Executive Independent Director
10622881 Mr. Tomohisa Saito Non-Executive Director
AAAPY4926B Mr. Praveer Yadav Chief Financial Officer
ANNPN4255A Ms. Nidhi Kandwall Company Secretary

During the year under review, the Company has made the following changes in the
Board/KMPs:

i) Appointment of Mr. Tomohisa Saito as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 09.05.2024.
i)  Appointment of Mr. Praveer Yadav as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 04.02.2025.

As of the date of the Report, the following are the Key Management Personnel of the
Company:

Managing Director
Whole-time Director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

i) Mr. Deepak Dimri -
ii) Mr. Chandan Kumar
i)  Mr. Praveer Yadav -
iv)  Ms. Nidhi Kandwal -

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 and the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla (DIN: 09854946) and Mr.
Prem Prakash Rathi (DIN: 09854954), Directors, retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

Independent Directors

In terms of Section 149 of the Act, following are the Independent Directors of the Company
as on date of this Report:
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DIN Name of the Director Designation

08415847 Ms. Ferida Avnish Chopra Independent Director

08254398 Mr. Alok Ranjan Independent Director

Declaration of Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations under Section
149(7) of the Act, that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section
149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors of the Company have undertaken requisite
steps towards the inclusion of their names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), in terms of Section 150 read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications,
experience, and expertise and hold high standards of integrity required to discharge their
duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence.

Related Party Transactions

The Company’s confracts/arrangements/transactions with related parties are in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Thus, provisions of Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. During the year, the Company has not
entered into any confract/arrangement/transaction with related parties that could be
construed to be “"material” in accordance with the “Policy for determining material
Related Party Transactions” approved by the Board. Thus, there are no fransactions that
are required to be reported in Form AOC-2.

The Company has complied with the Accounting Standards on Related Party
Transactions.

Internal Financial controls and their adequacy

The Internal Control System is commensurate with the size, scale, and complexity of the
Company’s operations.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that: -

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and requirements of the
Companies Act have been followed and there are no material departures from the
same;

2. appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and
have made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as fo
give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as of March 31,
2025, and of the losses of the Company for the same year;

3. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detfecting
fraud and other irregularities;

4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going-concern basis;
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5.

internal financial conftrols are followed by the Company and are adequate and
operating effectively;

proper and adequate systems have been devised to ensure compliance with
provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

Other Disclosures:

1.

During the year, no fraud has been reported by the Statutory Auditors to the Audit
Committee or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

No orders were passed by the Regulator(s), Court(s), or Tribunal(s) that could
impact the going concern status and the Company's operations in the future.

There are no disqualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers in the
Statutory Auditors’ Report.

There are no disqualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers in the
Secretarial Auditors’ Report.

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards in Board
Meetings and General Meetings.

During the year under review, there being no transactions/event/ occasion with
respect to following items and no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
same :

i) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as fo dividend, voting or otherwise;
ii) Issue of debentures, bonds or any other convertible or non-convertible
securities;

i) Issue of warrants;

iv)  Failure to implement any corporate action;

V) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company
under any scheme;

vi)  Buy-back of shares under Section 67(3) of the Act;

vii)  Details of revision of financial statement or the Report;

viii)  Amounts received from director or relative of the director.

ix)  Deviation or variation in connection with certain terms of a public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.

X) Company'’s securities were not suspended for trading during the year.

No application has been made or proceeding is pending against the Company
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016.

Disclosure w.r.t. difference between the amounts of the valuation executed at the
time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking a loan from the
Banks or Financial Institutions is not applicable.

Transfer to Reserves in Terms of Section 134 (3) (j) of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, the Company has made a profit/loss of Rs. 359.53/- Million
which has been transferred to Reserves and Surplus.
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Company'’s policy relating to directors’ appointment, payment of remuneration, and other
matters provided under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has devised terms relating to appointment of Directors, Managerial
remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors, and
other related matters as provided under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Unsecured loan from directors

During the year, the Company has not received any unsecured loans from the directors
and/or the relatives of the directors of the Company.

State of Affairs
To carry on the business of manufacturing, process of design and development of high
technology precision moulds, automated assemblies, internal tool manufacturing, and

state-of-the-art injection moulding component-manufacturing facilities.

Disclosure of Vigil Mechanism

According to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 7 of the companies
(Meetings of Board and its powers) rules, 2014 is applicable to the company. Hence, the
Company has established the vigil mechanism and its policy. The Audit Committee of the
Company is responsible for reviewing the same.

Details of policy developed and implemented by the Company on its corporate social
responsibility initiatives

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
were applicable to the Company.

In accordance with Section 135(5) of the Act, read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company was required to spend 2% of the average
net profits of the preceding three financial years on CSR activities during FY 2024-25. The
CSR obligation for the year amounted to Rs. 0.41 million.

The Company fulfilled its obligation by spending %0.41 million towards the “Promotion of
Healthcare,” in line with its CSR Policy and Schedule VII of the Act. Further details,

including initiatives undertaken and the composition of the CSR Committee, are provided
in the Report on CSR Activities (Annexure-ll) to this Report.

Credit Rating

The necessity to obtain a credit rating does not arise for the Company during the year
under review.

Annual evaluation of the board on its own performance and of the individual directors

The Board has undertaken an annual evaluation of its own performance and of the
Individual Directors as the said provisions is applicable to the company. The evaluation was
carried out after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering
various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy and composition of the
Board and Board culture, execution & performance of specific dutfies, obligations &
governance, and discussion amongst the Directors.
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Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits and hence there are no unclaimed
deposits as of 31.03.2025.

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

There was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend/Amount, therefore the provisions of Sections 124
and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the fransfer of unpaid/unclaimed
Dividend/Amount to the Investor Education and Protection fund do not arise.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

A. The information required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 with respect to technology absorption is
given hereby. Operations of the company do not involve any kind of special
technology and there was no expenditure on research & development during this
financial year.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings - Nil
C. Foreign Exchange Outgo :Rs. 66,26,248/-

Statement concerning the Development and Implementation of the Risk Management
Policy of the Company

The Company has a robust business risk management framework to identify and evaluate
business risks and opportunifies. The Company through its board oversees, the risk
management process including risk identificafion, impact assessment, effective
implementation of the plans, and risk reporting.

Also, the Company has a Board approved Foreign Exchange Risk Management policy to
manage the forex risk to protect the budgeted level of exchange rates, ensure that risk
management is within the risk limits for forex exposure defined in this policy, and ensure
compliance with RBI guidelines/other statutory requirements for managing forex risk.

Maintenance of Cost Records and Cost Audit

As specified by the Central Government, the Company does not fall under the criteria to
maintain Cost Records and Cost Audit Report.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has complied with provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has in place a
Policy for the prevention of sexual harassment in the workplace. The Company has also
constituted Infernal Complaints Committees under the Act. No complaint was received/
pending under the above Act during the year.

Auditors

1. Statutory Auditors
Shareholders’ in their meeting held on 23.7.2024 approved the appointment of M/s
Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No.
001076N/N500013) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five
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consecutive years from the conclusion of 14 Annual General Meeting (AGM) Hill
the conclusion of 19th AGM to be held in year 2029.

2. Secretarial Auditors

Mr. Chetan Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (M.No. FCS 6496 and CP No.
7077), Managing Partner of M/s APAC & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries, was
appointed as the Secretarial Auditor to conduct a Secretarial Audit of your
Company for the period 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025. The Secretarial Audit Report for
the said year is annexed herewith and forms part of this report as Annexure - |. The
Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse remark. Further,
there were no frauds reported by the Secretarial Auditors to the Board under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Internal Auditors

As per provisions of Section 138 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Rajeev Kumar Sarpal (ICAI Membership No. 501720), as the Internal
Auditor of the Company for F.Y. 2024-25.

Committees of the board

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the Governance Structure of the Company
and have been constituted to deal with specific areas/activities as mandated by
applicable regulations, which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board
Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined
roles that are considered to be performed by Members of the Board, as part of good
governance practices. The minutes of the Meeting of all Committees are placed before
the Board for review. The Board Committees can request special invitees to join the
Meeting, as appropriate.

Audit Committee

Though the company is a private company, it is a subsidiary of SPR Engenious Limited (a
public company) and a step-down subsidiary of Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (a listed
public company) shall be deemed to be a public company. Accordingly, the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 apply to the Company.

As of 31.3.2025, the composition of the audit committee is as follows:

S. No. | Name & Category Designation
1. Mr. Alok Ranjan, Non-Executive Independent Director Chairperson
2. Ms. Ferida Avnish Chopra, Non-Executive Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Krishnakumar Srinivasan, Non-Executive Director Member

Committee Meetings

During the year, 5 (Five) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on various dates viz.,
May 13, 2024, July 23, 2024, October 28, 2024, February 3, 2025, and March 25, 2025.

Name of the Member No. of Commiiltee Meetings attended/ Total
Meetings held during their tenure

Mr. Krishnakumar Srinivasan 5/5

Mr. Alok Ranjan 5/5

Mr. Ferida Avnish Chopra 5/5
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During the year, the Board has accepted all recommendations made by the Audit
Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Though the company is a private company, it is a subsidiary of SPR Engenious Limited (a
public company) and a step-down subsidiary of Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (a listed
public company) shall be deemed to be a public company. Accordingly, the provision of
Section 178(1) relating to the constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is applicable to the Company.

As of 31.3.2025, the composition of the NRC is as follows:

S.No. | Name & Category Designation
1. Ms. Ferida Avnish Chopra, Non-Executive Independent Director Chairperson
2. Mr. Alok Ranjan, Non-Executive Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Krishnakumar Srinivasan, Non-Executive Director Member

During the year, 1 (One) meeting of the nomination and remuneration committee was held
on 13.5.2024.

Name of the Member No. of Committee Meetings altended/ Total
Meetings held during their tenure

Mr. Ferida Avnish Chopra 1/1

Mr. Alok Ranjan 1/1

Mr. Krishnakumar Srinivasan 1/1

Particulars of Employees

The disclosure referred to in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 does
not apply to the Company as the Company is not a listed company.
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by the Collaborators, the Bankers, and ifs business associates and their appreciation of the
work of all ranks of the Company’s personnel during the year.

By order of the Board of Directors
For SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Sd/-

(Krishnakumar Srinivasan)

New Delhi Chairman
May 7, 2025 (DIN: 00692717)
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APAC & ASSOCIATES LLP

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial year ended 315t March, 2025)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited

SP2-41 RIICO New Industrial Complex, Phase -III, Alwar,
Neemrana, Rajasthan, India, 301705

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of SPR Takahata Precision India Private
Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) at the Board Meeting held on May 13, 2024 to
conduct the Secretarial Audit for the Financial year 2024-25. -

A.Management’s Responsibility on Secretarial Compliances

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of the
secretarial records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws and regulations.

B. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

C. Opinion
1) We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

2) Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit and we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during
the audit period covering the Financial period ended on the 31+ March, 2025, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper

APAC & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAF-7948

Regd. Office: 604-605, PP City Centre, Roag@No. 44, Pitampura, New Delhi-110 034
Tel.: +91-11-42502625 ® E-mail: info@apacandassociates.com e Website: www.apacandassociates.com



Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

L
II.

1L

IV.

VL

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, as applicable;

The Secretarial Standard with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (S5-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the Rules made
thereunder; Not applicable

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder
to the extent applicable on unlisted Company; Not applicable

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings; Not applicable

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended; Not applicable

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended; Not applicable

*The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, as amended; Not applicable

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depository participant)

Regulations, 2018, as amended; Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; - Not applicable.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 in relation to Employee Stock Option
Scheme; - Not applicable.

g) The provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of

Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 Not applicable.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

)

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
regulations, 2021; Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; - Not applicable.

3) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Page 2 of 4
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We further report that during the period under review:

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

I further report, as informed to us, there no other Sector Specific Laws applicable to the
company during the audit period. We have relied on the representations made by the
Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for
compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For APAC & Associates LLP

Company Secretaries,

ICSI Unique Code.: P2011DE025300

Peer Review Cert. No.: 3688/2023 valid till 30.06.2028

etan Gupta
Managing Partner >
Membership No.: F6496 Cé,ﬂ_\ ; \f_ 7
COP No.: 7077 NS T/

UDIN: F006496G000292914

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 07, 2025

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A”
and forms an integral part of this report.

Page 3 of 4
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To,

Annexure A

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
SP2-41 RIICO New Industrial Complex, Phase -III, Alwar,
Neemrana, Rajasthan, India, 301705

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as we were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and the happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For APAC & Associates LLP

Company Secretaries,

ICSI Unique Code.: P2011DE025300

Peer Review Cert. No.: 3688/2023 valid till 30.06.2028

Chetan Gupta

Managing Partner
Membership No.: F6496
COP No.: 7077

UDIN: F006496G000292914

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 07, 2025
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ANNEXURE -l
ANNEXURE TO BOARDS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

To conftribute to the sustainable development of society by supporting initiatives in
education, skill development, and related areas, thereby creating a meaningful impact
on communities.

Composition of CSR Committee:
Not Applicable

Web-link where the Composition of the CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:
Not Applicable

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not applicable

i) Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Act: Rs. 20.29 Million

ii) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Rs.
0.41 Million

iii) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

iv) Amount required to be set off or the financial year, if any: Nil

v) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c+d): Rs. 0.41 Million

i) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs.
0.41 Million
ii) Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: Rs. 0.025 Million
iii) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
iv) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(i)+(ii)+(iii)]: Rs. 0.41 Million
v) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Amount Rs. Million

Total Amount transferred to  |Amount transferred to any fund
Unspent CSR Account as per [specified under Schedule VIl as per
sub-section (6) of section second proviso to sub-section (5) of

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year

135 section 135.
Amount | Date of transfer Name of Amount | Date of transfer
the Fund
Nil
Nil NA - - -
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Excess amount for set off, if any:

S. Particulars Amount (Rs.

No. Million)

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per 0.41 Million
sub section (5) of section 135

(i) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2024-25 0.41 Million

(iii) [Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) JAmount available for set off in succeeding financial years NIL
[(iii)-(iv)]

7. a) Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
financial years: Not applicable

Amount (Rs. Million)

S. |Precedingl Amount |Balance | Amount | Amount transferred to| Amount |Deficiency,
No.| Financial ffransferred| Amount | spentin| any fund specified | remaining if any
Year [to Unspent in the |under Schedule VIl as|to be spent
CSR Unspent freporting| per Section 135(6), if in
Account | CSR (Financial any succeeding
under |Account| Year financial
. Name|Amount|Date of
Section | under fth A ¢ years.
135 (8) SUb- of the ransfer
. Fund
section
(6) of
Section
135
Not applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the
Financial Years

O Yes v No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year.
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Short particulars|

of the property Details of entity/ Authority/beneficiary of the
or asset(s) |Pin code of Amount registered owner

5. No [including the Date of | of CSR
7’| complete |property or| creation | amount CSR
qdd!‘ess and asset(s) spent Registration Name Registered
location of the Number, if address
property] applicable
Not Applicable

9. Specify the reason (s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit
as per Section 135(5): Not applicable

Sd/-
New Delhi Krishnakumar Srinivasan
May 7, 2025 Chairman
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
L-41, Connaught Circus,
Outer Circle,

New Delhi - 110 001

India

T +91 11 4500 2219
F +91 11 4278 7071

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision
India Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPR Takahata Precision India Private
Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) (‘the Company'), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Charlered Accountanls Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered -
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Takahata Precision India
Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

(This has been intentionally left blank)
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SPR Takahata Precision India
Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the

Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

Chartered Accountants

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
as it appears from our examination of those books
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SPR Takahata Precision India
Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act,

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B, wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company, as detailed in note 37 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2025.

i. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025,

il. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in 44 (iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 44 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Takahata Precision India
Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

vii  As stated in note 45 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on or after 1 April 2024,
has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Furthermore, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention from the date the audit trail was enabled for the accounting software.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Aﬁw o

Arun Tandon

Partner

Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAG7623

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India
Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(c)

(d)

(e)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which
the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment
,capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in note 3 and 6 to the financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company. For title deeds of immovable properties in the nature of land situated at SP2-
41, New Industrial Complex, Phase 3, Neemrana, Rajasthan with gross carrying value of
Rs. 28.61 millions as at 31 March 2025, which have been mortgaged as security for loans
or borrowings taken by the Company, confirmations with respect to title of the Company
have been directly obtained by us from the respective lenders.

The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-
of-use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

(iii)

Chartered Accountants

(b)

during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and where discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory noticed on physical verification as
compared to book records have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In respect
of goods-in-transit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and/or dispatch
inventory records.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. ;

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Comp

30




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India
Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(V)

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

(Amount in Rs. millions)

Name of | Nature of | Gross Amount paid | Period to | Forum where dispute
the statute | dues Amount | under Protest | which the | is pending
amount
relates
Income tax | Income tax AY 2017-18 | Appellate authority up
Act, 1961 21.05 7.84 to Commissioners'
level
Income tax | Income tax AY 2018-19 | Appellate authority up
Act, 1961 6.10 - to Commissioners’
level
Income tax | Income tax AY 2020-21 | Appellate autharity up
Act, 1961 4.63 - to Commissioners’
level
Goods and | Goods and July 2017 to | Appellate authority up
Services Services 1.94 018 March 2021 | to Tribunal
Tax Act, | tax ' )
2017
Goods and | Goods and April 2020 to | Appellate authority up
Services Services 0.16 0.00* March 2021 | to Commissioners’
Tax Act, | tax ' ' Appeal
2017
Goods and | Goods and July 2017 to | Appellate authority up
Services Services 62.96 _ | September | to Commissioners’
Tax Act, | tax ’ 2023 Appeal
2017

*Rounded off to zero
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India
Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not
have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e)
and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xi)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, SUIOK
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.as O\
prescribed under section 133 of the Act. f A\
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India
Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required
under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(xx)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at
end of the current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as at end of
the current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India
Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regi[tration No.: 001076N/N500013

UM cutoov"\

Arun Tandon

Parther

Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAG7623

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statement
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Takahata
Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Arun Tandon

Partner

Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAG7623

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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SPR Talahata Precision India Privite Lirnited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Bulance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

0/ C

Note As a As at
no. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Bs. million
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipient 3 L1718 1,191.07
1y Capital work-in-progress 4 21.69 33.63
©) Incangible assets 3 4.06 3.52
d) Right-of-use assers [ 12751 2797
¢ inancial assets
(1) Other fmancial assets 7 6l.61 1.61
£) Orher non-current assers 3 17.99 13.11
) Deferred tax assets (net) 17 38.39 -
1,445.63 1,304,91
Current assets
a) Inventories 9 203.19 2343
b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 1 395.95 32232
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents 1 H1.36 20595
(i) Other bank balances other dhin (1) above 11 247.12 oo
{w) Ocher financial assets : T 10.38 3
¢) Other current assets 8 3460 31.20
1,085.66 982,63
TOTAL ASSETS 2,531.29 2,287.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
1) Equity share capial 12 1,833.00 1,835.00
b} Orher equity 13 {594.56) WL
1,240.44 BR3.6G6
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i} Barrowings 14 494 930.58
L) Provisions 13 1844 15.03
g 733.38 963,61
Current liabilities
%) Financial liabslitivs
(1) Borrowings 18 244 12222
{if) Trade payables 19
‘Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises. 2n 1675
Toral f:urmnduw dues of creditors other than miceo enterprises and small 185,92 193.62
cuterprises
(iify Other financial liabilitics 20 2 4046
by Other comrene habdivies LG H3.82 04.63
¢} Provisions 15 7.4 .37
537.47 438.27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,531.29 2,287.54
See accompanyimg notes 1o the fuaneal statements 1445
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note For the year ended For the year ended
no, 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
I Revenue from operations 21 2951.58 2,675.08
11 Other income 2 25.83 12.60
811 Total income (I+1I) 2,977.41 2,687.68
v Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 1,862.08 1,762.94
(Incrense) / dcctgusc in inventories of finished 24 3235 (21.01)
goods and work-in-progress
Emplayee benefics expense 25 24391 217.69
Finance costs 26 90.11 88.30
Depreciation and amortisation expensc 27 11525 183.87
Other expenses 28 317.28 321.76
Total expenses 2,658.98 2,553.55
v Profit before tax (IT1-TV) 31843 134.13
Vi Tax cxpense!
1) Current tax 17 - 3.45
if) Tax selated o carlier years 17 (3.45) 0.7¢4
i) Deferred tax 7 (37.66) -
@11 4.19
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 359.54 129.94
VIII Other comprehensive income
(i) Trems that will not be reclssified o profit or loss )
2) Remeasurements of the post employment defined benefit plans (5.69) (0.47)
b) Income tax relating to items that will nor be reclassified to profit or loss, 0.93 -
Total other comprehensive income (2.76) (0.47)
Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII) 356.78 129.47
Earnings per share ( of Rs. 10/- each) 30
Basic (Rs) 1.96 0.78
Diluted ( Rs) 1.96 0.78
See accompanying notes (o the nancial statements 1-45
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Chartered Accounants
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Partner

Membership No. 517273 4

Deepak Dimr

Managing Director
DIN: 03344410

Place : New Delhi

Nidhi Kandwal
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities Rs. million Rs. Million
Profit before tax 318.43 134.13
Adjustments for :
Depreciation/ amortisation (reter note 27) 113.25 183.87
Finance costs (refer note 20) 90.11 88.30
Provision for doubtful debts (net) (refer note 28) 1.38 4.20
Interest income (refer note 22) (18.01) (11.97)
Net gain on sale/ fair valuation of current investments (refer note 22) (6.39) ((1.43)
Unrealised exchange rate variation (ner) 0.02 (1.03)
(Profit)/loss on sale/retirement of property, plant and equipment (refer note 22) (1.40) 0.06
Operating profit before working capital changes 497.39 397.11
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/ deerease in inventories (9.76) (26.37)
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (75.01) (20.99)
{Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (current and non-current) 0.25 (3.23
(Increase)/ decrease in uther asscts (current and non-current) 37 3213
Increase/ (decrease) in trade pavables (12.36) T.42
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (current and non-current) (15.51) 46.21
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (current and non current) 25.41 43.15
Cash generated from operations 414,16 475.44
Income tax paid (net) (0.64) (19.70)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 413.52 455.74
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Investment in deposit with banks (297.12) (110.00)
Praceeds from redemption of deposit with banks 110,00 178.20
Proceeds from redemption of current investments 2,341.26 250,45
Purchases of current investments (2,334.87) (250.00)
Interest received 11.12 9.79
Sale of property, plant and cquipment 174 0.11
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital -
work-in-progress and right of use assets) (162.82) (105.55)
Purchase of other intangible assets - (L.05)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (330.69) (28.05)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (82.21) (82.78)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - 1,100.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings (122.22) (1,330.00)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (204.43) (312.84)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (121.59) 114.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 205.95 91.10
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 84,36 205.95
(This space has intentianally kft blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision [ndia Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Balances with banks

- currenl accounts

- Deposits with banks, with original maturity less than 3 months

Notes to statement of cash flows:

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
0.20 0.16

R4.16 175.79

= 30.00

84.36 205.95

‘I'he cash flow statement has been prepared under the iadiceet mechod as set out in [ndian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 7.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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a) Fully paid up equity shares

( face value of Rs 10/- each)

Balance as nt 31 March 2023
Add: issued during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2024
Addl: sssued during the year

Balance as at 31 Maech 2023

SPR ‘Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025

No of shares

93,500,000.00
90,000,000.00

183,500,000.00

183,500,000.00

Rs. million

935,00
900,00

1.833.00

(b) Other equity Rs. million
Reserves and surplus . TR
Parteulars Deemed e?mty cm;jmbuuun Total
Retained eamings (refer note 13)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (L11L77) - (L,1LLT7)
Profit for the year 129.94 129.94
Exquity contribuuon on account of corporate guaruitee = 30.96 30.96
Other caomprehensive income for the year, ner of tax 047 - 0A47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (982.30) 30.96 (951.34)
Profit for the year 339.54 - 339.54
Orher comprehensive income for the year, net of tx (2.76) - (2.76)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (625.52) 30.96 (594.56)

See accampanying notes 1o the fnancial staements
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Chartered Accounants
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Cotporate information

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) (‘the
Company'), is a private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its
registered office at SP2-41 RIICO New Industrial Complex, Phase — I1l, Neemrana, Alwar, Rajasthan —
301705, The Company is engaged in the primary business of manufacturing and distribution of precision
moulded resin parts/precision metal moulds/assembled resin parts using advanced injection moulding
technology for automotive and industrial applications.

The financial statements of the Company are approved for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors
on 07 May 2025.

2. Material accounting policy information
2.1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements ("financial statements") have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with
Rule 3 of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’).

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual and going
concern basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:-

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments).

i) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligation.

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy

hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly obscrvable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes is determined on such a basis




SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formetly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

and measurcments that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurement are categorised into level 1, 2, ot 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in the entirety, which are described as follows:

_Tevel 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

_TLevel 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c., as prices) ot
indirectly (Le., derived from prices).

_Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobsetvable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a
valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from obsetvable current

market transactions in the same instrument nor arc they based on available market data..
2.1.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current

classification

The Company classifies an asset as current asset when:

. it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

. it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;

. it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

. it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. it holds the liability ptimarily for the purpose of trading;

. the liability is duc to be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

5 it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classificadon,
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All other liabilities ate classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in

cash or cash equivalents.
The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months.
2.2. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The prepatation of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standatds (Ind AS)
and requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and the reported income and expenses during the year. The management believes that the estimates used
in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known / materialise information, about significant arcas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

« Deferred tax : Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

« Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets : value of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
at the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage could
significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the
future depreciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

« Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments. These include the estimation of the appropriate discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the employee
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.

» Estimation for expected credit losses of trade receivables : Trade receivables do not carry any interest
and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated itrecoverable
amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management believes that there is uncertainty
of collections. Provision is recognised based on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of

the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.
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2.3.1 Revenue recognition
Sale of products/services

Revenue from the sale of products or services is recognized upon transfer of control to customerts.
Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected on behalf of the
government). A receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations as pet the contracts

and is measured at transaction price.
Contract assets

A contract asset is the tight to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Company petforms by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the carned consideration that is

conditional.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a castomer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are

recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
2.3.2 Other income
Interest Income

Intetest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time

basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate as applicable.
Miscellaneous income

Other revenues are recognised on accrual basis, except where there are uncertainties in realisation /
determination of income and in such case income is recognised on realisation / certainty.

2.4.1. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods and setvices, or for
administrative putpose, are stated at histotic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing
cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets are ready for their

intended use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
— ey
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(a) it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company. All other repair and maintenance expenditure are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenditure are incutred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefit
are expected to atise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal of or
retirement is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets

and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
2.4.2. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for administrative purpose,
are stated at are stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits availed)
including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing cost on
loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no futute economic benefit are expected
to atise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss atising on the disposal of or retirement is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
2.4.3. Capital work-in-progtess

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development
and are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs,

bortowing costs and other direct expenditure.
2.4.4. Leases
Lessee Accounting

1. Lease liability is initially recognised at the commencement of lease and measured at an amount equal to
the present value of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not yet paid.

2. Right of use asset is recognised at the commencement of lease and measuted at cost, consisting of initial
measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the restoration costs and any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets and impairment loss.

3. The lease liability is measured in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method.
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4, Recognition and measurement exemption is availed for low-value assets and short term leases. Assets
of low value include I'T equipment or office furniture. No monetary threshold has been defined for
low-value assets. Short-term leases are defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.5. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its

estimated residual value.

The Company is following written down value method in case of Furniture and fixtures, computer and

office equipment and straight line method in respect of other assets.

Depreciation on tangible propetty, plant and equipment has been provided as per the useful life prescribed
in Schedule T to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the certain categories of assets, in whose
case the life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature, the
estimated usage, operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological

changes and maintenance practices ctc.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used
Factory building - thirty years
Factory wall fencing - five years

Plant and machinery

- General - twenty five years
- Electric installation / equipment - ten years
- Spares - five years
- Plastic crates - fifteen years
- Moulds - six years
Vehicle - eight years
Furniture and fixture - ten years
Office equipment - five years
Computer - three years

All intangible assets are amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful life as under.
Computer software - three years

Product design - six years
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Assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold/discarded during the year is charged on pro-rata basis in the year of

sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.6. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instruments.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit ot loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and

i) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets; and

ii) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. The
normal credit period is 30 days.

Investments

Investments in mutual funds and investment in equity instrument are measured at fair value through profit

or loss.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit ot loss
(EVTPL). For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note no 39,
2.7. Detivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency

interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit
and loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss.

This category has derivative financial asscts or liabilities which are not designated as hedges. Although the
Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not
qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not
designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial
asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs
are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incutred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through the statement of profit and loss and the
resulting exchange gains ot losses are included in the statement of profit and loss. Assets/liabilities in this
category ate presented as current assets/current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected
to be realized within 12 months after the Balance sheet date.
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2.8. Inventories

laventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurtred in bringing each product to

its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

i) Raw materials, loose tools and store and spares : cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above

cost.

ii) Work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

iif) Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufactuting

overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
2.9. Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on or
closely approximating to the date of transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of histotical cost in a foreign currency ate not retranslated.

Eixchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod
in which they arise except exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain

foreign currency risks.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss except for those which are designated as hedging

instruments in a hedging relationship.
2.10. Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contribution towards Provident Fund is paid as per the statutory provisions/Company’s scheme. These
benefits are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when they become due. For defined
post-cmployment employee benefit plans, the cost of providing bencfits is determined using the projected
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unit eredit method, with actuarial valuations being cartied out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuatial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan
assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprchensive income is reflected immediately in retained carnings and is not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod
of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are catcgorised as follows:

i) Setvice cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments

and settlements);

ii) Net interest expense or income; and

iii) Re-measurement.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the period
the related setvice is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange

for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount

of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Leave availment / encashment benefit is provided as per Company’s scheme. Employees are entitled to

accumulate leaves subject to certain limit as per Company’s scheme.

Liabilities for compensated absence that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the petiod in which the employees rendered the related service, are measured at the present value
of expected future payment to be made in respect of service provided by employees up to the end of
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefit are discounted using the market yields
at the end of reporting period. Remeasurement as a tesult of experience adjustments and change in

actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

mployee benefits in the form of long service awards is provided as per Company scheme. The liability is

determined through actuatial valuation using projected unit credit method.
2.11. Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Cutrent income tax for current
and ptior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorites,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the

rax bases of assets and liabilities and their cartying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets
.\"J—.h-.;lu_,‘“\
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are reviewed at each reporting date and ate reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax
sates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the petiod that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

The Company offsets cutrent tax assets and cutrent tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ot production of qualifying asscts,
which are assets that necessatily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other botrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod in which they

are incurred.
2.13. Earnings per share

Basic carnings per sharc is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to the owners of the Company
by weighted average numbet of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, share split and

any new equity issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per share, profit or loss attributable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year arc adjusted for the
cffects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14. Impairment of assets

The cattying values of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets or cash
generating units are reviewed at each Balance sheet date for impairment. If any indication of impairment
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying
amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to
their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment
TR




SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such

teversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component

is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.
2.15. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.16. Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation

that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood on outflow
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.17. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenucs and incur expenscs, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and assembling of moulded parts using advanced
injection moulding technology. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segments and assess their performance. CODM believes that these are governed by same set of risk
and returns hence CODM reviews as one balance sheet component.




SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

2.18. Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
31 March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 -
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. 01 April 2024. The
Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does
not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)

54



"SILAN T OV,

fuudwos oy vy Alcsn PuE UORIPUOD 1UMLNI $11 UO PISYG PRIRINEA- UaAq SEY spuawdinha pue auegd su1 g0 agy gasn gL (0

| sy @1 Sununown wad snowaad Suunp pajmar

patipayd usag sty fuadoud qrackl PUE JrALL S, oy ayp,

fundwany Ay o Ay g Ul ppay .

fundiwary 2 Ag ppay saadasd ajgracwn sy

JreSpAsp A AL, n
<reas 3y Suunp suswdmba pu wueyd {uadoad s11 panjeans jou svy Suvdiwor) g

SIION]
BIPLI'L 10°68 bt o°Ll 8T8 T 1T0SL 00°15€ 6707 YorE 1€ 3w st sunowe Suidues 10Ny
86°808 pLLE 66T 0% 70 e PEEIR 08'sy €707 YDIRIX 1€ 1t St uonepaidap parmwnaor Juisol)
9 oLn hra AL o1
201t LNCL LE1 6L 9L FEYL s34 A Juunp pads
SEHOY LRYT 841 ([ 6T oLT cTYEL WTE nasadap parntunad
uonepaidap pazmwnidy
9TCRYT SL96 P8'E SLs %8 9'S PETOIT 08'665 TZ0Z UPRIAL [§ 1T ST JUNOWE SUIALIED S5037 SUIS0)
g : Gl [Is SEeodeicy
8 9En i g9 st b
LHG r 13 009 §8L donippy
CPEns'l 19788 e 1£9 6Le SHERO'L R HOE sunotur Fuplurs ssodd Huuadgy
wunowr Surlues ssois
$ZOT YMIPIN 1€ 1 SV
LOT6L'T SLE9 6T e 8Lt 80°€ 0T 6hL PELIE $Z07 WpIE [ 3w svumome Juilies 19N
8E°F0F L8FT 8L1 (% £6'T oLe ST'YEE HE +Z0Z YOIPIAL 1€ 1 ST uonepaidap panwnade HBusopy
- = : E - : : - Srendeic]
987181 el FEl i 1 9€Lr1 w1 eak ays Suunp patleygs vonoazdagg
TeTR ebel w0 ol 96'0 GR'8R1 FT'ol poneassdap paremumaat Suadg)
uopEpadap pawWnaY
Sh'S6S°L 19'88 69°E ore 1o 6L'S SP'G80'L 08°66€ FZ02 HAIRIA 1€ IT ST aunoLuy SUIKITD 5038 BUISO[)
L0 - ora LOO = = 2 smsadsiq
SeLS £6l 680 . SIbS Py
LTBES'T 19'88 o'l He'r L9 ne e 04668 Junowe Fuaues ssoaff Fuiuadgy
junowr: Fuilaaes ssoin
20T YP N 1€ 1" 5V
%10, bt el amnduwo siuatudimba 201 sapPiya T simwidjnlia sy
oL e ol siuatudr Wo APIAA put smitng - siuippng danmsnEg
v 5y

wswdmbs pue wued ‘Aumdoig ¢

$Z0Z YPITIAL 1€ PAPUS IE3A 311 10} SIUAINEIS [RIDUTUY A 01 SNON

(paInuT| S1eALL] BIPU] UOISIODI] BIBYENEL Apawaoy)
PAIMWT NBAL BIPUJ UOISII1 BIEYENEL YdS

55



(yteog Wiy fpnosstinpns teaxg soig aods si )

ek snoward pur sziz g 1 5o se wed jeuiduo i o paredied 1sod s

2353 S 40 NP0 §1 vepAdwed asoym ssaufiosd upgdom-peides Japun spzafoud yans ou e Ay
ssaufoud uy saalosd ay g mmoN

3

st | unpes poiajduna aq

Spuasns A[ardodiing s1anla]

0Es = - = [ORY _ssagmord ur siaslos]
sxeak ¢ UEL) 3014 smeak ¢-g sIeak -1 sealk [ ey ssa]
moL
o pouad v 30y ssmdoxd upspom-pande] up 1unousy LiLiUEl
FTOT YAIT 1€ 30 SV
o Sy 2apun st st anpatos Jupi ssmBoad uspom-mdey
auak | ungi paradwad aq [ ssamiosd ug sy alead g oN
- = = = E papuadsns fpunodiuny soalar|
69°1Z = - 69°1T sssauioad ul s1oaliag]
samak ¢ ur U0 sswak g-g s1eak Z-1 avadk 1 uEp S8
=L
70 pouad © 10) ssasdoad up-spom-[EdeD) U IuNOLY SIENIRIT]
STOT YPTEW 1£ ¥ SV
uoriw sy Zopun se 51 anpays Supde ssaadoid utsproa-rendery
£9°€5 6971 41X U1 J0 pUa D IEaduY s
£EIE g0l - Tanp paysnipr/ pastjrdiTy
SEBL FORL aead a fuunp uomppy?
e €9°¢E Jead s o Suruutdag syl e sueg

FZOZ UM TE IR RY | SZ0T UPININ 1€ 1 SV

sIEnonmg

uorqiut sy

SZ0T YMTIAL T PAPUS 32K 21 10§ SIUDLLALEIS [EDUELY AL 01 SMON
(painury MeAR ] PIPUT UOISIONE] BIRYENEL Apawzoy)
P MBAL] BIPU] UOISIDAT] iyl WS

ssasdoad ulspios ridep

56



SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

5. Intangible assets

Rs. million

Particulars

Other intangible assets

Computer software

Computer server

Total

As at 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 5.88 2,13 8.01
Additions 0.74 0.30 1.04
Disposals = - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 6.62 243 9.05
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation 1.23 0.60 1.83
Amortisation charged during the year 1.12 0.58 1.70
Disposals = - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 2.35 1.18 3.53
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 4.27 1.25 5.52
As at 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 6.62 243 9.05
Additions - -
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 6.62 2.43 9.05
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation 235 1.18 3.53
Amortisation charged during the year 1.08 0.38 1.46
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2025 3.43 1.56 4.99
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 3.18 0.87 4.06

Notes:

i) The Company has not revalued its other intangible assets during the year.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

6. Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets
Particulars (Land) Total
(refer note 34)

As at 31 March 2023
Gross catrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 28.01 28.61
Addidons - -
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 28.61 28.61
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation 0.33 0.33
Amortisation charged during the year 0.31 0.31
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 0.64 0.64
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 27.97 27.97

As at 31 March 2024
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 28.61 28.61
Additions 100.31 100.31
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 128,92 128.92
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation 0.64 0.64
Amortisation charged during the year 0.77 0.77
Disposals -~ -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2025 1.41 1.41
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 127.51 127.51
Notes:

i) The Company has not srevalued right-of-use assets during the year.
ii) A negative lien has been carmarked by the bank against right of use of assets due to term loan availed during the previous year (refer note 14).
iii) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company are held in the name of the Company.

(T'his space has been intentionally left blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formetly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

7. Other financial assets

Non-current:
Security deposits

Deposit more than 12 months

Current:
Security deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits

8. Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Non-current:

i) Capital advances
ii) Income tax assets (net of provision)
iii) Prepaid expenses

Cutrrent:

i) Advances other than capital advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for

value to be received
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for advance to vendor

if) Balance with government authorities
iii) Prepaid expenses
iv) Other reccivable

As at
31 March 2025

Rs. million
11.61
50.00

61.61

As at
31 March 2025

Rs. million

1.32
9.08

10.40

0.02

10.38

As at
31 March 2025

Rs. million

1.24
16.37
0.38

17.99

4.72
0.26

4,98
0.26

4.72

9.73
5.93
34.28

49.94

54.66

(1'his space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

11.61
11.61

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

1.57
2.1
3.74
0.02
3.73

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

2.04
12.28
0.79
15.11

1.04
0.07
11
0.07
1.04

13.99

7.89
34.28
56.16
57.20



SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial staiements for tie year ended 31 March 2025

9. Invenaries.

walined an lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw muterial, packing materil and components.

(Ineludes in-ramsiy Rs 2,39 miillion (previous year 12,14 mllinny)
Waork-in-progress

Finished poods

(includes in 1
Stores and spares

it Re, 3.99 million {previous year Re. 1786 million))

Nates:
i) The inventarics are hyporheeated as secun

write down of Rs.

i) The value of inventorics above is netarl

10, Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - Secured
Trade reccivables considered good - Unsecured®
Reecivable which have sipgnificant ineres
Credit impaired

o in credit risk

Les

Allowairice for expeeted credit loss on receivable eruai impaired

Notes:

i) The trade receivables are pledged as security against rerm Inans from banks, refer note no 14
vithle which lave significant increase in eredit risk.

if) There are no trade e

i) No trade or ocher receivable are due from dircctors or other afficers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person ar debits due by firms or private companics respeetiv

a partner or a director or a member.

against term Juan from hanks, rofer note 14,
57 million (previons vear Rs.1.31 million),

iv) Trade receivabiles inclades Rs 333 million (Previous year : nil ) due from relared partics (refer note 32),

Trade receivable ageing as at 31 March 2025 is us undern:

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million

TRE 1Y 146.13

1167 6,99

H4.91 79.94

042 0.35

293.19 283.43

As at Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
3595 32232

523 41

40118 32643
(5.23) .11

395.95 322.32

in which any dircetor is

Rs. million

Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment

Particulars Lessthan 6 6 months 1-2 years Nk More than Towl
months - 1year - 3 years

(i) Undisputed trade: receivables —considered pood 38041 - 6.54 - 395.95
(in l-'uqispumd trade receivables —which have significant increase in a3 LiK 173 52
eredit nsk
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — ereditimpaired - - >
(iv) Disputed tude receivables—considered goud - -
(v) Disputed wade receivables — which lave significant increase in
credit risk B -
(vi) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - = =

Total 389.41 = 0.32 7.72 3.73 401.18

Rs. million

Trade receivable ngeing as at 31 March 2024 is as under:

Outstanding for fullowing periods from due date of payment

Particulars h:

Less than6 6 months 1.2 yeiirs 23 yéiits More than Toral

months -1year 3 years

(G} Undispured erade seceivables — considered good 294.62 15.23 1247 - - 32232
(i) l:nd.lspmcd trade receivables —which have sipnificant increase in i Wi L 129 265 an
credit sk
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaircd - - -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables—considered good 3 = - -
(v} Disputed wide reecivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk
(i) Disputed trade receivables — eredit impained - - -
Total 294.64 15.32 13.53 0.29 2.65 326.43
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11. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances seith banks
Deposits with hanks, with onginal maturity fess than 3 months
- QUITENL - ACCOUNTS

i) Other bank balances

- Digposits with banks | with original maturiry more than 3 months

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Nates to the finaneial statemems for the year ended 31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2025
Rs. million

20

8416
84.36

247.12

247.12

331.48

(Thi space bias biew infentinnalfy feft blank)

As
31 Maurch 2024

Rs. million
16
RIEEH

175.79
205.95

T

110.00

315.95
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SPR Takahata Precision Indis Private Limited
(formerly Takuahutis Precision India Private Limited)
Notes o the financial stsements for the year ended 31 March 2025

12. Equity share capital

Asa As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Authorised shares
195,000,000 (previous year 103,000,001} equity shares of Rs, 11 cach 19500 193000
1,950.00 1,950.00
a. lssued, subscribed and fully paid up shates
IR0 (previous year 830000} cquin shares of Rs. 10 cach 163500 153500
1,835.00 1,835.00

1, Terms /rights awached w equity shares

“The Company has only one class of viuiry shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. n the event of iquidation, the equiny sharcholders ace eligible o receive the remaining assets of the Company afier distribution of all
preferential amount, i Propetion to their shareholding,

¢. Recanciliation of bees af equity shares ding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year
Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares million Rs. million Nn. of shares million Rs. million
Opening halance 183.50 183500 0330 935,00
Lssued duting the vear - . 90,00 YU, H0
Closing balance 183.50 1,835.00 183.50 1,835.00
d, Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the C
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares million % shareholding No. of shares million % shareholding
Liquity shares of Re. 10 cach fully paid
SPR Engenious Limiwd 1377 62.041% 1377 625
Takahata Precision Pre. Limited 69.73 3800 .73 8%
¢, Details of shares hield by promoters at the end of the year
As wi Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
D )
Nu, of shares million % sharcholding . e el No. of shares million % sharcholding : M ehangy
during the year during the year
SPR Engenious Limied 1377 62% - 1377 62% 100%
“Fakahata Precision Pre. Limited 69.73 3R . 69.73 R 3%,
f. Apgregate number of shares issued for id wiher than cash during the period of five years i diatel ding 31 March 20253
For the yeur ended
31-Mur-25 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 ' M"‘,’;’;‘z 31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
Ligguity shares alloteed as fully paid up (refer note below) . 9,00,00,000 . - 5

Duting the previous year, the sharcholders of the Company, in their Eastea-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 09 June 2023 approved the conversion of partial amount of unsecured Joan (exremal commercial
horrowings) outstanding in the name of Takahat Precision Ple. Limited., Singapore amounting 1o Rs.900 Millon into equity share capital, Consequent (o the conversion, the Company allotied 90 million equity shures of
Re.10 eich o Tukahuna Precision Pre, Lad., Singapore on a preferential basis on 13 June 2023,

g The Company has not issucd any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and preceding five years,

13. Other equity

- Reserves and surplus Deemed equity —
contribution
Retained earnings
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (L111.77) (1,111.77)
Profit for the vear 129.94 129.94
Other comprehensive income for the year {047y
Eguity contribution on accuunt of corpunie guarantee 3.96
Balunce as at 31 March 2024 (982.30) 30.96
Prosfit for the vear 339.54 .
Other comprehensive income for the vear (2.76) -
liquity eontribution on account of comorate guarinice - -
Balance as ut 31 March 2025 046 (594.56)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Rewined Earning
Retalned camings refer o the net profic/ (loss) serained by the Company for iis core business activities. Alsa includes re-measurement gains on defined benefic plans.

Deemed equity contribution
Deemed cquity contribution represents the deemed contribution by the Ulimate Holding Company for comporate guaganiee for rerm foan obrained from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to Rs 110000 million. frefer note 14)

Q\.\i-«‘}!_‘:’ﬁ\‘h iy
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1. Burrowings
(AT P
Non current:
Secnred

Tena loany (o banks

Vst s Curpnt maruritics of Jong toem bareaings (reice note 18)

SPR Takahuta Precision Indiu Private Limicd
{formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limired)
Nates wilie financial ststements for the year ended 31 Murch 2025

As at
31 Muarch 2025
Rs. millian

59,38

959.38
24444
71494

As ar
31 March 2024
Rs. million

| V72 R0

1,072.80
122232

o Term Lavan from Bonk i sccured by wai of negative e an immscahle propery of the compang. first pan passu cliange on mivable peoperns of the company, present and future, sceiad pari passu change o fnvestonc ard wade
receinabiles o the company, present and luste and fusther secural by sy of eorpore jpuinntee of Utimae Holding Company.

Rimoant sutstanding

Repayment perivd

 from uriginatian (yeas)

Ins

talinents outstanding

Effcctive rate of Interest]

per annum|

Changes in liabilitics arising from financing acrivities during financial year end

Outstanding balance

Net proceeds /

Ouistanding balance as at 31 March

Paniculars s a1 01 Apeil 2024 (lcp!)'mcf" ) of Non-cash changes 2025
botrowings
Loe term borrowangs (including cusrent matunties of loog e bormwings) 17280 (12223 881 93038

Changes in

ed 31 March 2024:

Rs. millinn

arising from financing activities during financial year end

Paciiculass

Ouustanding balance

Net praceeds /
{repayment ) af

Non-cash chanpes

Oustanding balance as at 31 March

as at 01 April 2023 Cassawings 2024
Lang tetm horsivings (ineluding current maturities of Jong term bormwings) 220236 (23N106) (9N0.00) (0
15. Provisions
Asat As mt
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Nun-current; Rs. million Rs. million
M3

Proviston for gratuity (refer note 31)
Prondsion for comjiensated absences {refer note 31)
Current

Provicion for pratuiny (refer note 31
Prowisien for compensated absences (vefer nate 31)

16. Ouher linbi
Current;
Revenue reecived m advance (refer noe. 21)
Statutory ducs

Cnhers*

“includes amount payable for disputed stanton dues frefer nute 33).
17, a) Deferred rax asscts {net)

Deferred tax Hability
Impact af difference benveen 1oy depreesation and depreciation amomsation
chisged in binoks

Deferred tax asscis
sion for employee benefits
Provision for duabtful debits advanees

Busincss lnsses and unsbanrbed depreciation

Net deferred tox dssels

h) Reeonciliation of tax expenses and accounting profit

0
3

023
034
0.57
Aswm Asm
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. millinn
355
084
043
83.82
As ar Asar
31 March 2025 31 Maich 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
(.16}
{60.16)
G4 434
132 1.3l
H0.99 21289
98.75 218.44

As ut
31 March 2025
Hs. millinn e
Prodin b 1 B3
Income tax expenses caleulared a1 cutrent tax rate BO.15
Add: (3 Eifeet of expenses that ure not deductible im derernining 1asable profi Az ILO§*S
Effect o tax related 1o carlier years {345 (LUK
(iti; Toffeet of deforeed tax nev ereared in carker years (120.43) {3795
Income 1y expenses recoprised in Statement af Praficand L “1.8n (1291%)

As at As Asat ”
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 Asat As at]
(Rs. million) (Re. milliony no. Periadiciny 3-Mar-25 31-Mar-24|
95938 167240 3 15 Quariery 732 770
959.38 1,072.80
iy Disclosure uadee Para 434 as ser ot in Tnd AS on cash flow staiements under Companies (Indian Aceotnting Standarde) Rules, 2017 fas amencded) 35 given helow:
ed 31 March 2025: Rs. million
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(<) Changes in deferred tax assets (ney)

Ttems Ieading to creation of deferred 1ax assces.

Provision far criplosee beaufits

Bustness losecs amd inabsorbed depreention

Prowision for doubiful debis sdvances

Trems leading to deferred tax lahilitics

Tmpact of differenice hevween tas depreciation and deprectatin/ amorisarian
charped in hoaks

Ner defereed tax assets / (ubility)

(i) Tax expense

1) Current rax
b) Defesred tax
€ s elated o catler years

SPR Tokuhata Precision Indis Private Limited
{formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Motes 0 the financial stemens for the year ended 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024 Resogalibd

As ut 31 March

oc Profit/lass 25
043 331 64
0L i1
132 132
- . (6n16) 6016
0.93 37.66 38.59
Yearended Year ended

31 March 2025
Re. million

(3639
3.4%)
(42.04)

(This gpae doas bt otentiaally bt dunk )
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31 March 2024

Rs. miflion
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

18. Short-term borrowings

(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Secured
Current maturities of long term borrowing (refer note 14) 244.44 122.22
244.44 122.22
19. Trade payables
(At amertised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
~Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1211 16.75
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 185.92 193.62
198.03 210.37
Trade payable includes Rs, 39.61 million (previous year Rs.45.47 million) due to related parties (refer note 32)
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025 is as under: Rs. million
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
aried Not due Yzsg tea 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
1year
(i) MSME 12.11 - - 12.11
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 158.03 26.81 0.29 0.79 185.92
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - : = -
Total 170.14 26.81 0.29 0.79 198.03
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024 is as under; Rs. million
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
AR Not due Tiehw s 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
1 year
(i) MSME . 16.75 - - 16.75
(i) Disputed dues — MSME = - - E -
(iii) Others 20.04 17273 0.85 = 193.62
(iv)Disputed dues - Others = - = - -
Total 20.04 189.48 0.85 - 210.37
20. Other financial liabilities
(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Current:
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.40 732
Capital creditors 6.89 14.68
Employee related payable 10.55 18.26
Security deposits 0.20 0.20
24.04 40.46
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

21. Revenue from operations
Year ended
31 March 2025

Rs. million

Sale of products 2913.88

Sale of service 15.79
Other operating revenues

- sale of scrap 2191

2,951.58

As at

31 March 2025

Timming of revenue recognition:

Gouods transferred at a point in time 2,951.58
Contract balances
As at
31 March 2025
Rs. million
Revenue received in advance (refer note 16) 3.55
Contract liabilities - Revenue received in advance
As at
31 March 2025
Rs. million
Opening balance of contract liabilities -
Less: Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities -
Add: Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year (net of refunds) 3.55
Closing balance of contract liabilities 3.55

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Year ended

31 March 2025
Rs. million

Revenue as per contracted price 293241

Adjustments

Less: Sales return 7.34
Less: Discount/ price adjustments 11.19
Revenue from contract with customer 2,913.88

Performance obligation

Information about Company's performance obligation is summarised below:

Sales of products

Revenue from sales of products is recognised at a point in time when control is transferred to the customer,

Sales of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised on accrual basis and when services are provided.
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Year ended

31 March 2024

Rs. million

2,655.65
2.02

17.41
2,675.08

As at

31 March 2024

2,675.08

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

2.04
2.04

Year ended

31 March 2024

Rs. million
2,689.59

2145
12,49
2,655.65



SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

22. Other income

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended

31 March 2024

Rs. million Rs. million
Interest income™
- Bank deposits 16.91 9.68
- Others 1.10 2.29
Net gain on sale/fair valuation of current investment™* 6.39 0.45
Profit on sale of property plant and cquipment 1.40 -
Other non-operating income 0.03 (.18
25.83 12.60
* underlying assct on which income is recognised are carried at amortised cost
** represents income on assets recognised at fair value through profit and loss.
23. Cost of material consumed
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Raw material, packing material and components at the beginning of the year 146.15 137.77
Add: Purchases 1,904.12 1,771.32
Less: Raw material, packing material and components at the end of the year 188.19 146.15
1,862.08 1,762.94
24. (Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 19.67 56.99
Finished goods 84.01 79.94
104.58 136.93
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 56.99 50.01
Finished goods 79.94 65.91
136.93 115.92
(Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
32.35 (21.01)

(This spate bas been intentionally left blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited

(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

25. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and ather funds (refer note 31)

Staff welfare expenses

26. Finance costs

Interest expense
- on borrowings

- on others

27. Depreciation and amortisation expense

- Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
- Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 6)
- Amottisation of other intangible assets (refer note 5)

28. Other expenses

Rent
Power and fuel
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Communication
Insurance
Auditor's remuncration (refer note 29)
Membership and subscription fee
Sccurity expenses
Rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional expenses
Freight, transport and handling charges
Other manufacturing expenses
Corporate social tesponsibility expenses (refer note 43)
Repairs and maintenance:

Plant and machinery

Other
Sub-contracting expenses
Provision for doubtful debts(ner)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Director's fees
Business promotion expenses
Loss on foreign exchange (net)
Royalty
Miscellancous expenses
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
192.53 166.28
11.24 10.13
40.14 41.28
243.91 217.69
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
81.30 8§4.53
8.81 3.77
90.11 88.30
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
111.02 181.86
0.77 0.31
1.46 1.70
113.25 183.87
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Rs. million

Rs. million

7.42 6.65
82.14 8141
13.37 13.66

2.42 2.82

6.72 9.50

1.59 1,60

0.21 0.50

431 4,75

0,42 12.30

1.78 1.98

3.23 6.61
15.67 14.62
10.58 10,16

(.41
28.19 27.23

7.81 8.08
65.67 54.58

1.38 4.20

- 0.06

0.55 0.15

4,15 2.02

6.63 7.73
49.35 44,62

3.28 6.52

317.28 321.76




29, Payment to auditor
{ excluding goods and serviee tax, as applicable)

As auditor:

- Audit fee

- Limited review

- Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

30, Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit attributable to equity sharcholders (Rs. million)

Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos. million)
Earning per share

- Basic (Rs.)

- Diluted (Rs.)

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
1.50 (1]

n.o0 0.90

0.05 0.06

(.14 0.14

1.59 1.60

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
359.34 129.94

183.5 165.55

196 0,78

1.96 0.78

(This space bas been intentionally lefl blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

31. Employee benefits

The Company has classified the various employee benefits as under :

Defined contribution plans

The Company has recognised the following amount in the statement of profit and loss:

Employers' contribution to Provident fund

Employers' contribution to State Insurance fund

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
10.14 9.03

1 1.10

11.25 10.13

In accordance with Ind AS 19, actuarial valuation of defined benefit plans was done for Gratuity and details of the same arc given below :

Particulars

Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss

Current service cost

Net interest cost on defined benefit/ liability

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss
Net (asset) / liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net (asset) / liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Provision for gratuity
Current (refer note 15)
Non-current (refer note 15)

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year
Present value of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the year
Current service cost

Net interest cost (income)

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (actuarial (gains)/losses)

- Changes in demographic assumptios
- Changes in financial assumptions

- Experience variance

Bencfits paid

Present value of DBO at the end of the year

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains)/ losses

- Changes in demographic assumptions

- Changes in financial assumptions

- Experience variance
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
2.44 2.04

0.75 0.63

3.19 2.67

15.89 10.36
15.89 10.36

3.59 0.23

12.30 10.13
10.36 8.45

2.44 2.05

0.75 (.63

(5.29) :

7.98 0.23

1.00 0.24

1.35 1.23

15.89 10.36

(5.29) -

7.98 0.23

1.00 0.24

3.09 0.47
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Year ended Year ended
Actuarial assumptions for Gratuity 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.50% 7.25%
Salary escalation 8.00% 6.00%
i) Retrement age (years) 58 58
i) Mortality table used 100 % of TALN (2012-14) 100 % of TALM (2012-14)
i) Attrition at ages: Withdrawal Withdrawal

Rate (%) Rate (%)

Up to 30 Years 25 3
From 31 to 44 years 25 2
Above 44 years 25 1

Estimate of the futute salary increase is based on factors such as inflation, seniority, promotions, demand and supply in employment market,

Sensitivity Analysis for significant actuarial assumptions Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
Impact on liability Impact on liability
Particulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Rs. million Rs, million Rs. million Rs, million
Discount rate +50 basis points = 0.32) 3 0.81)
-50) basis points 0.33 - 0.90 <
Salary growth rate +50) basis points 0.32 - 0.80 -
-50 basis points - (0.31) 0.75)
Autrition Rate® +350 basis points - (0.82) - -
-50 basis points 1.55 - = -
Mortality Rate* +10 basis points - (0.00)
-10 hasis points 0.00 -

The sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these not caleulated. Sensitivities as rate of
increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life espectancy are not applicable.
* Rounded off to zero.

Risk factors in actuarial assumptions

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow -

A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase
the liability.

B) Investment risk — If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets Jower than the discount rate assumed at the ’
last valuadon date can impact the liability.

() Discount rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Morality and disability — Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilitics,

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact plan’s liability.

Regulatory framework/ Governance / Benefits under the plan:

The gratuity benefit is a post employment benefit. It is calculated at the terminal salary (Basic+VIDA) at the time of separation of the employee according
to the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, However, there is no restriction on the maximum amount of gratuity payable.

iy Compensated absences Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Present value of obligation 9.69 5.25
Net assets / (liability) recognized inbalance sheet 9.69) (5.25)

Provision for compensated absences
Current (refer note 15) 3.55 0.34
Non-current (refer note 15) 6.14 4.90

An amount of Rs 6.95 million (previous year : Rs 4.38 million) pertains to expenses towards com ensated absences and is included in "employee benefit
P ¥ P Ploy

expenses”,
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

32. Related party disclosure

As per Indian Accounting Standard —24 the Company's related parties and transactions with them are disclosed below

A. List of related partics:
Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company

Key management personnel

Entity over which, Key Management Personnel, Associate
Company and their close members of the family has significant
influence or control

Fellow Subsidiary

Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (w.e.l 16 October 2023)
SPR Engenious Limited (w.e.f 16 October 2023)

Shri Krishnakumar Srinivasan, Chairman ( w.e.l 16 October 2023)
Shri Nobuyuki Ako, Director

Shri Deepak Dimrd, Managing Director

Shri Chandan Kumar, Whole-time Dircctor

Smt. Ferida Chopra, Director (w.e.f 08 November 2023)

Shri Alok Ranjan, Director (w.e.f 08 November 2023)

Shri Pankaj Gupta, Director (w.e.f 16 October 2023)

Shri Arun Kumar Shukla, Director (w.e.f 16 October 2023)

Shri Prem Prakash Rathi, Director (w.c.f 16 October 2023)

Takahata Precision Co., Limited. (Ultimate Holding Company till 15 October 2023)
‘Takahata Precision Thailand Limited

Takahata Precision Vietnam Co Limited

Takahata Shen Zhen Co Limited

Takahata Precision Pte. Limited (Holding company till 15 October 2023)
Takahata Precision Tenncssce

Takahata Precision Yamanashi Co. Limited

Takahata Precision Fspana S.1..

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private
Limited)

SPR TGPEL Precision Engineering Limited ( w.e.f. 24 December 2024)

g
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B. Related party transactions

(i) Transactions during the year

SIPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Rs. million

Entity over which , Key
management personnel and e .
Ultimate Holding Company their Close members of the R “';: petsanne Total
Particulars family has significant ( )
influence or control

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 |31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Remuneration
Deepak Dimri* - = - - 7.63 27 7.63 727
Chandan Kumar* - - - 7.78 6.72 7.78 6.72
Director sitting fees
Ferida Chopra - = - - 0.28 0.08 0.28 0.08
Alok Ranjan - - - - .28 008 0.28 0L.08
Interest on external commercial borrowings
"I'akahata Precision Pre Limited - - < 46,05 - - 46,05
Royalty
Takahata Precision Co,, Limited. = 49.35 44.62 49.35 44.62
Technical
‘Takahata Precision Espana S.L, - - 8.25 - - - 8.25 -
Reimbursement of expenses
‘Takahata Precision Co., Limited, = - 11.24 10.37 11.24 10,57
Shriram Pistons and Rings Limited 0.03 0.36 - - - - 0.03 0.36
Purchase of goods
“J'akahata Precision Co., Limited. - uA0 23.59 < 5 (.40 23.59
Takahata Precision Thailand Limited - 120.14 105.35 - 120.14 105.35
Takahata Precision Yamanashi Co. Limited - - 16.81 0.68 16.81 0.68
Shriram Pistons and Rings Limited 0.50 - = - - - .50 -
SPR EMF Innovations private limited = 0.01 - : - 01 -
Repayment of external commercial borrowings - 2 1,324.80 - = 1,324.80
Amount paid for providing resources and facilities 2,04 0.34 - - -

204 0.34

Share issued during the year
‘Takahata Precision Pte Limited 900,00 = 900.00
Sale of products
Takahata Precision Co., Limited. - = - 0.35 - - 0.35
"Fakahata Precision Yamanashi Co. Limited B 0.52 0.58 - 0.52 0.58
‘Takahata Precision Kyushu Co Lid. = : 0.02 5 0,02
SPR EMF Innovations private limited - - 294 - - 2.94

@) *KMPs, also participate in post employment henefits of the Company. The amount in

employees of the Comipany,

(ii) The transactions with related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

[This space has been intentionally lef blank)
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C. Related party transactions
(ii) Balances due from/to the related parties

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Entity over which , Key
management personnel and
Particulars Ultimate Holding Company their Close members of the Total
family has significant influence
or control

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Royalty payable
Takahata Precision Co., Limited - 12.10 10.36 12.10 10.36
Amount payable/(recoverable)
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited 0.62 0.37 - 0.62 0.37
Takahata Precision Co., Limited = 12.32 8.87 12.32 8.87
Takahata Precision Thailand Limited = 11.01 25.23 11.01 25.2%
SPR EMF Innovations private limited - . (3.53) = (3.53) =
Takahata Precision Yamanashi Co. Limited - - 3.55 0.63 3.55 0.63
Deepak Dimri - - - 0.01 - 0.01

(i) The Company has recorded a reccivable of Rs 34.28 million from Takahata Precision Co. Ltd., representing the expected recovery of interest liability related to
pending litigation concerning the secondment case under the Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, (refere note 37)

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

33. Information pursuant to clause 3 (vii) (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 in respect of disputed dues, not deposited as at 31 March

2025, pending with various authorities:

Name of the Statute

Nature of the dues

Forum where dispute is
pending

Period to which the amount
relates(various years
covering the period)

Amount
involved®
(Rs. million)

Amount
unpaid
(Rs. million)

Amount paid
(Rs. million)

Income tax Act, 1961

Income tax

Appellate authority up to
Commissioner level

Assessment Year 2017-18

21.05

Income tax Act, 1961

Income tax

Appellate authority up to
Commissioner level

Assessment Year 2018-19

6.10

6.10

Income tax Act, 1961

Income 1ax

Appellate authority up 10
Commissioner level

Assessment Year 2020-21

4.63

4.63

Goods and Services
Tax Act 2017

Goods and Services
tax Aet 2017

GST-Tribunal, |aipur.

From July 2017 to March 2021

1.94

1.76

0.18

Goods and Services
Tax Act 2017

Gouods and Services
tax Act 2017

GST Commissioner
(Appeals), Jaipur

April 2020 to March 2021

0.16

0.00

Goods and Services
Tax Act 2017

Goods and Services
tax Act 2017

GST Commissioner

(Appeals), Jaipur

July 2017 to September 2023

62.96

62.96

0.00

*amount as per demand orders inc

clause of share purchase agreement dated 09 Febroary 2023 between SPR Engenious Limited and Takahata Precision Co Limited.

(This space has been intentionally lft blank)
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SPR Tukahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notws to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

34. Right-of-use assets :

“The changes in the carrving value of rght of use asscrs for the year ended 31 March 2025 arc as Tollows:
Rs. million

Pasticulars Right-of-use asset
Land
Balance as of 01 April 2023 28.28
Addinon &
Deletion
Amortisation of rght-of-use asset .31)
Balance as of 31 March 2024 21.97
Addition 100.31
Deletion -
Amortisation of right-of-use asset 0.77
Balance as of 31 March 2025 127.51

The Company’s leasing sctivity by type and narure of right:of-usc asset recognised on halanee sheet is given helow :

Jos. of ri q
No. of right Range of Avu_-agc
of assets i remaining
remaining term
1aken on G lease term
lease I yiam) (in years)
Land
- 31 March 2025 2 85-98 9.5
- 31 March 2024 1 86 86

35, Segment reporting
The Company is engaged in a single segment i.e. the business of "automotive components” from where it is carning its revenue and incurring expense. The operating resulls

are regularly reviewed and performance is assessed by its Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODN). All the Company's resources arc dedicated o this single segment and all
the diserete financial information is available for this segment.

Geagraphical information in respect of sale of products/services from customers is given below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Domestic 2.951.04 2674.17
Export 0.54 0.9
2,951.58 2,675.08

Notes:

a) There are o material non-current assct domiciled owside India,

b) During financial year ended 31 March 2025, three customers amounting w Rs 1,584.48 million (previous year Rs 1113.57 million for two customers) individually
represents 10% or more of the Compuny’s revenue from uperatons.

36. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act

‘e statos of vendors under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devclopment (MSMED) Act, 2006 is based on certificate submitted by vendors- about their coverage
under the provisions of MSMED Act, 2006,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs, million
Amount remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED as at the end of year
- Principal amount * 1211 1675

- Interest due thereon

Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year
- Pringipal amount
- Interest actually paid under seetion 16 of MSMED -

Amount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which has been paid but
bevond the appointed day during the vear) but withaut adding interest under MSMED

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

_ Interest acerued during the vear .
_ Interest remaining unpaid as at the end of the year o =

Interest remaining disallowable as deductible expenditure under the Income-tax Act, 1961
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SPR Takuhata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

37. Contingent liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million

Claim against the company disputed and not acknowledged as debts
- Goods and Services Tax (refer note 33) 63.06 63.88
- Income tax (refer note 33) 31.78 35.74
- Labour laws # 2.69 2.38

All the above matters are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the management, the legal proceedings, when ultimately
concluded, will not have a material effect on operations or the financial position of the Company.

# 'This relates to interim relief to workers,
Furthermore, all pending litigations related to goods and services tax and income tax pertaining 10 period earlier than 16 October 2023 are covered within the
indemnity clause of the Share Purchase Agreement dated 09 February 2023 between SPR Engenious limited and Takahata Precision Co limited.

38. Capital Commitments

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs, million
2.24

iyEstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account -
(net of advances) and not provided for

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

39. Fair value measurement

i) Financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost are :
(Rs. million)

Particuls As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
articulars

Carrying amount Carrying amount
Financial asscts
Trade and other reccivables 395.95 32232
Cash and cash equivalents 84,36 20595
Other bank balances 247.12 11040
Balance in deposit account 5046 -
Sceurity deposits 1293 13.19
Interest accrued on bank deposits 9408 27
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 939,38 107280
Interest accrued but ot due on horrowings 6.40 7.32
‘Trade pavables 198.03 21036
Capital creditors 689 14.68
Security deposits 0.20 020
Employec related payable 10.55 18.26

*I'he carrving value of the above financial dssets und financial liabilities approximate its fair value.

40. Capital management

The Company's objective for managing capital is to ensure as under:

i) Ensure the Company's ability w continue as a going concern

i) Maintain a strong eredit rating and debt equity ratio in order to support business and maximize the sharchalders’ valuc.
iii) Maintain an optimal capital structare.

iv) Compliance of financial covenants under the barrowing facilities.

For the purpose of capitul management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributuble to the equity holders of the Company and net debr includes total

liabilitics, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

As at
31 March 2025
Rs. million

Gearing ratio

Borrowings including currem maturities (refer notel4 and18). 939.38
Less: cash and bank balances (refer note 11): 33148
Adjusted net debt (A) 627.90
Equity 1,240.44
Total cquity (B) 1,240.44
"Total equity and net debt [C=A+B] 1,868.34
Gearing ratio (A/C) 33.01

The Company manages its capital structure keeping in view of:
iy Complianice of financial covenants under the borrowing facilites
ii) Changes in economic conditions

In order to achieve this overall objective of capital management, amongst other things, the Company aitmis to easure that it meets financial covenants attached to the burrowings facilities
defining capital structure requirements, where breach in mecting the financial covenants may permit the lender to call the borrowings.
‘Ihere have heen no bréach in the finaneial covenants of any borrowing faclity in the current period. There is no change in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital over

previous year. Ta maintain the capital strucrure, the Company may vary the dividend paymicnt ta sharcholders.

For the purpose of capital management, eapital includes issued equity capital, and all ather equity reserves mtributable 1o the equity holders of the Company and net debt includes wrl

liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings.

“The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt capital ratio, which is caleulated as interest-bearing debts adjusted with available cash and bank balances divided by total eapital

{equity attributable 1o owners of the Company and nct debr).

As at

31 March 2024
Rs. million

1,072.80
315.95
756.85
483.66
883.66

1,640.51
46.14

T
A
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formicrly Takahata Precision India Privaie Limited)
Nutes to the fnancial staements for the year ended 31 Murch, 2025

ancial management

s’ principal financial Labitics, eompeise of foans and bormowdrgs, el and other payables. The main purpose of these firar
her receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that it desives directly from s operanons.

e Campany i exposed 1o marher risk, credit risk and ligithey nishe, The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks under appropriate pulicies and procedures.

Tabilitics 15 o finance the Company s aperations. The Campans's principal finaneid

assets inchude loans, trade and of

i) Marken risk
Marbet risk is the risk that the fair value of futuee eish Tows of o fisaneial insteament will Auetia because of changes: in marker prees Murket misk comprises three twpes of nisk imerest rw sk, eurmeney rish and Giher price
risk, such as ety priee risk and eommodiny nsk, Financial insraments affected by market sk include loans and borrewsags, deposis. INTPL current investments

a) Foreign exchunge risk
The Company, 1 exposed o furcign exciange v thresigh its piirchases and sale fiofy ovurseas in foreige cunencies mairly in USDTHB and J1Y, The exchange rate hetween the mipee and forcign curreacies his ehianged
<ubsstantially in recent vears aricd may Nuctuate substanialiy t the furure. Consequently, the maults of the Company ™ aperations mat be adversely affected as the rupee apprecsaies [ depreciaes agaimnst hese currencies

Sensitivity
Leach pereentae print chiange in the fordgn eschange rtes has anmpacton profir before tanas follows:

Increase / (decrease)

As at 31 Murch As au 31 March

2025 2024

Rs. million Rs. million

Iixehange rate - inereasen by 1% (1138} (1.74)
Exchunge rate - deerease by 149 1038 1074

The Company's foreign currency mk frum financial instruments arc as under:

(Fureign currency million)

i P—— A= at31 March 2025 As a1 31 March 2024

- e Total Hedged Net Toual Hedged Not

Teade payables s 01 019 0.2l 021
e .06 E 690 10,58 - 188
Y 82 E 082 436 - 446

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate righ is the tisk that the fair vahae or furre cash flows of g financial insrumeat will fucioe beeause of changes i market inerest ares. Ve Company's esposore 1o the nsk of changes 0 market interes pates relates
primanly to the Compiny’s lungems deby oblipations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its intercst e risk by having 3 balinced ponttilio of fixed and vanable rate loans and horrowings. To manage this, the
Company enters inte criss curfency interest rate swaps, in which it agrees 1o exchange, at spectfied intervals, the difference buwen fised und varidble rate inwrest amaunts caleulired by fefererice 1o un agreed-upon notional
prncipal amount.

“The Company is nat exposed 10 any sigaificans /marerial inrerest rate rish.
Sensitivity
Vanable interest rate Ioan are exposed to interest rate risk, impact on profit before tax may e as follows:

Inceease [ (decrease)

Asat31 March As at 31 March

2025 2024

Rs. million Rs. million
Interest rate - increase by 0.50%, LR 3.30)
Intesest mate - deercise by 1,50% .80 5.36

©) Credit risk
Credit ris is the wisk that counterparty will not meet jts wbligations under a financial instrument or custorer contract, leadiing 1 a financial Toss, The Company is exposed w eredit risk from its operating aetivitics (primarily rade
receivables) and from its financing activities, inchuliog deposits with baatks and financial insttusions, forign esehange tansactions and other financial instruments. Credis sk is managed by Compiny’s established policy and

procedures.

Movement in the exp d eredit loss of fi ELLTIES

(Rs. million)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Balance at beginning of the year 4.11 -

Particulars

Addd: Provided during the year 112 4.11
Less: Amount wrinen off 3 -
Balance at the end of the year 5.23 4.1

“Thie apeing analysis of mude reccivables (net) before adjusiment of expected credit loss provision of 2323 million: (previoss year Rs .11 million ) s of the reporting dare is as follows:

Age Bracket Lessthan G| b o dyear| 12years 3y, | R Sund Totl
months years,

As a1 31 March 2025

Trade receivable { gross) 389.41 - 032 iy 373 40008

Less: Allowance for expeered eredit loss - 0.32 118 373 33

Trade receivable (net) 389.41 - - 6.54 - 395.95

Expected credit loss % - > 100.00%: 15.25% 100.00%| 1.30%

As av 31 March 2024

Prade recvivable [ gross) 20464 13.32 1333 0.29 265 326.43

Tass: Allowance for expected credit loss 0o e 1.0 029 2.63 401

Trade receivable (ner) 204,62 15.23 1247 - - 322,32

Exp d credit loss % 0.66% 0.56% 7.85% 100%5| 1.00 1.26%
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SPR Takahuta Preciston India Privare Limited
(formerly Takihata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes 1o the finuneial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

i) Liquidity risk
Thie Company’s abicetive & o manan 3 halance botween continuity of fussding and fleaibilits through e use of bank everdrafis, bank loans. Laquidin. aisk 1 munaged by Company’s cstablished policy and procedures made
under liguidin hanagement fraceswork. The Company manages Tiquidiy sk by mainmaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, and reserve bormwing fralites by contnuously forecast and acrual cash (T, and by

marching the mat

profile of Gnancl aysets and Habilies.

“Thie financial assers and habilities have heen appropriarely diselosed in financial saareminis as curent and ot currenr parton The manim perod of non curent fisancial assers and finanesl liabihey ranpes herween 1o 3 vears.

As a1 31 March As ut 31 March
025 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
On demand
Huruwings E
Less than | year
Burrowiag: 2444 $foacticl.2
Trude pavables 1) 21036
Onher financial habiliics 2d4m 4046
More than 1 year
~ Borrowings 1494 030038

fii) Commadity rivk

Commedity price risk is the findncial fsk on the Company’s profitabiliy upon fuceuations in the prices of commiodities since they are prinyarily drivin by extermal market forces. Sharp Mucwaations in commeodity prices ean affect
production casts, product pricing and camings. This price voluility makes 1t imperause for an entity o manage the impact of commudity prie fluctuations across it value chain o effecovely manage s nancial performance and
profitability, ‘o mitigate these risks, the Company eaiploys multiple levers, each ehivsen based on a cost benefiv analysis and the extent of exposure o commodiey price uctatinns, These finclude assecsing the feasibilin of passing
uny adverse flUCations onio custimers through price increases, continuously enpaydn in cost optimisation initauves 2nd process improvement exceaises. The Company alsiy explones uptivns such as localizing impans/
implementing plobal suurang strategics [ Lnsurc most cost effective sourcing. Based on the assessment by the Company and afet facuomng the abiliey o optinise costs and pass on prices to costomurs, o individual commadity is

(o

expected to have 3 sipnificant adverse impact on the financial performance/ profitabnlin beyond irs 2 hold approved by the Board.

iv) Other price risks
The Company has deploved its surplus funds ino \arious financial instruments including units of mural funds. ‘The Company is esposed to NAV (et asser valie) price rishs arising from investments 1n these funds. Thee value of
these in 15 impacted by in intceest e , liquidiny and credit qualine of underying sceunties.

(Fhir gpaare buas ber intentionally lefe Wawky
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42. Additional regulatory information

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars Unit Numerator Denominator Variance %
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 rmee
Current ratio Times [Total current asscts Total current lizbilines 1.95 224 (13.14%)
Debri-Equity eatio® Times (Dbt consist of barrowings “Total Equity 077 1.21 (36.29%)
Delivséviee ciwtnipe hto™ Times Earnings for Dth. serviee =1 et profit |Debt service ; Inl(mst and lease 275 017 LHHS.84%%
after tax + depreciation + interest payments+ Principal repayments
Retiirn on cyuity ratdo Yo |Profir for the year Average total equicy 33.85 36,70 (7.92%)
Inventory timover ratio Times |Cost of Goods sold Average inventory 6.57 6.45 L.94%
‘Trade receivables turnover rato Times |Sales of prnr]ucts Average iade receivables 8.1 8.46 (4. 10%)
Trade payables turnover ratio Times [Cost of material + other expenses Average trade payable 10.83 9.96 8.73%
Average working capital (i.e Total
Net capital wrmover raio™* Times |Sales of products current assets less Totl current 543 4.49 21.13%
liabilities)
Net profit ratio™*** %% |Profit for the vear Sales of products 1234 4.89 152.18%
: o Capital emploved = Tangible h
Return on capital employed=== Y |Profit before tax and finance cost +“B ?:tt NPIORe AnpEEe ekt 18.62 11.40 63.30%
¢
: " . Average invested funds in treasury - s aih
Return on investment™ =" o |Income generated from invested funds 5 £ 5.96 6.33 (5.85%)

investment

* The varianee is attributable to the payment of installments toward the term loan.

= The variance is on account of lower repayment of borrowings.

#*= "The variance is on accounts of improvement in net working capital.

sr=rThe Varddnce is on account of increase in revenue from operation/cost of goods sold and cffect of change in the uscful life
amount of depreciation charges during the year.

=+==% The Company thas caleulated return on inventment hased on the amount invested in securities during the financial vear there is no opening

(This space has been intentionally kit blank)
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of plant and cquipment from 15 to 25 years leading toa decline in the




SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)

43. Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR)

(Rs million)
. Year ended 31 March Year ended 31
Particulars

2025 Match 2024
(i) amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 0.41 0.00
(i) amount spent during the year:
a) construction/acquisition of any asset Nil NA
b) on purposes other than (a) above* 0.41
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year - -
(iv) total of previous years shorefall - -
(v) reason for shortfall NA NA
(vi) details of related party transactions, ¢.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the

NA NA

Company in relation  to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

Note:
*The Company has taken up CSR project/activity in the Heath Care programmes.
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SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited
(formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statemencs for the yeur ended 31 Mareh 2023

44. Other statutory information

i) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending uginst the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami ‘Lransactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
(i) The Company does not have teansacuons with companics steuck-off from Register of Companies.
(iif) 'The Company bas not tmded or invested in ceypto currency of virtual currency during the Gnancial year.
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds’to any other person or catity, including foreign entities (Intermediarics) with the understanding
that the Tntermediary shall:

(a) dircctly o indircetly lead or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or .

(b) provide any guacantee, seeurity or the like to oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(v) The Company has not received any funds from any person or entity, including forcign eatities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiarics) vr

{b) provide any puarantee, securiry or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vi) "The Company does nor have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Ineome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevanr provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).
(vi)) ‘The Company is not dectared wilful defaultee by any bank ar financial institution or government or any government authority.
(viii) The Company dnes nor have any charges or satisfaction which is et to be registered with repister of companies beyond the statutory pesiod.

45. "The Ministey of Corporate Affaies (MCA) has peeseribed a new requigement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 inserted by the Companics (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companics, which uses accounting sofoware for maintaining its books of accouar,
shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit teail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made ia the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit tzail cannot be disabled. The new requirement is applicable with
effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023,

"T'he Company, in cespect of financial yeae commencing on or after | April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
fenture of recording audit il (edit log) Facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transacdons recorded in the software.
Vurthermore, the audit teail has been presesved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record recention from the date the audit trail was enabled for
the nccounting software.

In terms of vur report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vhathdomes (Wa,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Ifieen Registegtion No.: ADL076N/N5S00013 5
auoﬂ» Krishnalumar Seinivasan Al Ranjan”
('("L ‘\ Chairman irector
DIN : 00692717 DIN: 08234398

Arun Tandon , "‘ﬂp.Nb
A4

Partner iy

Membership No. 310273

Place : New Delha Place : Lucknow

S [WJWLUL-

Praveer Yadav Deepak Dimri Chandan Kumar

Nidhi Kandwal Chief Financial Managing Director Whole time Dircetor

Company Secretary Officer DIN: 03344410 DIN:09596404

Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date:N7 May 2025
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